LAKE COUNTY OHIO RECORDED ON

10-12-2006 2:35 PM

FRANK A SUPONCIC LAKE COUNTY RECORDER

68.00

REC. FEE:

PAGES:



FRANK A. SUPONCIC, CPA, CFE RECORDER

EASTERN LAKE COUNTY (440) 350-2510

WESTERN LAKE COUNTY (440) 946-2829

FAX

(440) 350-5940



RECORDING INFORMATION

This cover sheet is a permanent addition to the original document and MUST be retained with the document that was filed and/or recorded.

Reflected hereon is the pertinent recording information:

- File Number
- Date Filed
- Time Filed
- Recording Fee
- Number of Pages Recorded

Thank You

BY-LAWS OF

THE CROSSROADS AT SUMMERWOOD HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. OF CONCORD TOWNSHIP, INC

ARTICLE I MEMBERS

Section 1 – Members

The owner or owners of record of the sublots in Crossroads at Summerwood Subdivision shall automatically become a member of The Crossroads At Summerwood Homeowners Association Inc. of Concord Township, Inc., an incorporated not-for-profit organization formed under the laws of the State of Ohio, upon acquisition of title to said sublot and shall be entitled to participate in the operation of the Association and shall be bound by the regulations and restrictions set forth herein and as promulgated from time to time by the Board of Trustees. Said regulations and restrictions shall be binding on all successors and assigns, occupants or renters. Membership in the Association shall lapse and terminate when an owner ceases to be the owner of record.

Section 2 – Voting Rights

Each lot shall have one vote which shall be exercised by the owner or owners of record unless said owner or owners assigns the voting right to any other person, to be effective until revoked in writing, but in any event for a period not to exceed eleven (11) months from the date the proxy is given, and the assignment of voting rights (proxy) is filed in writing with the Vice-President or Secretary of the Association prior to the meeting at which such proxy is to be exercised.

Section 3 – Transfer of Ownership

Whenever the ownership of any lot shall be conveyed or transferred, the membership shall automatically pass to the new owner, but the Association shall not be bound by notice thereof until it has received a copy of the deed as recorded or certified to have been recorded. If any lot is sold by land contract, then the vendee therein shall be the voting member upon recording of the land contract and shall be chargeable with the obligations as owner. The Association shall not be bound by notice of the transfer by land contract until a copy of the land contract has been delivered to the Association.

ARTICLE II MEETINGS

Section 1 – Annual Meetings

The annual meeting of the Association shall be held each year in Lake County during the first quarter of every year commencing in the first year after lots in said subdivision have been sold to persons other than the developer. Notice of the annual meeting shall be sent to the owners as



shown on the records of the Association by ordinary mail at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the annual meeting. Each notice shall contain the place, date, and time of the meeting.

Section 2 – Special Meetings

Special meetings of the members may be held at any time upon call of the President, or upon a majority vote of the Board of Trustees, or upon written request of five (5) or more members of the Association. Notices of special meetings shall be sent to the members as shown on the records of the Association, no less than ten (10) days prior to the meeting by ordinary mail or by direct delivery to the homes of the members and such notice shall specify business to be considered at the meeting. Each notice shall include the date, place and time of the meeting.

Section 3 – Regular Meetings

The members shall meet no less than one (1) time each year in addition to the Annual Meeting at a date to be set by the Board of Trustees. Notice of a regular meeting shall be sent to the owners as shown on the records of the Association by ordinary mail at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the regular meeting. Each notice shall contain the place, date, and time of the meeting.

Whenever any special approval is needed and the matter will be discussed at a regular meeting, the regular meeting notice shall contain specific mention thereof.

Section 4 – Meeting of Trustees

All business conducted by the Trustees shall be at meetings at which at least two (2) trustees are present and for which notice has been given at the home of the trustee at least 48 hours prior thereto. Any act requiring approval of the trustees may be approved or ratified in writing by all three (3) trustees without a meeting.

Section 5 – Organizational Meeting

Directly after the Annual Meeting, the members of the Board of Trustees shall meet to elect officers.

Section 6 – Quorum

A simple majority of the voting membership represented either in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum at all meetings. If no quorum is present at a duly called meeting, then those present may agree to a postponement of said meeting to a specific date.

Section 7 – Place of Meeting

No meeting shall be held at a place more than 12 miles distant from the boundaries of Crossroads at Summerwood Subdivision.

Section 8 – Approval Without Meeting

41750

Whenever any action requires approval of the membership, it may be approved by written approval signed by sixty percent (60%) of the Association.

ARTICLE III TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

Section 1 – Numbers and Qualifications

The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Trustees who shall all be members of the Association, except that until seventy-five percent (75%) of the lots in the subdivision have been transferred by the developer, the trustees may be selected by the developer and such trustees need not be members of the Association.

Section 2 – Composition and Term

The Board of Trustees shall consist of three (3) trustees. At the first meeting held after seventy five percent (75%) of the lots have been transferred by the developer, however, all members of the developer's Board of Trustee shall resign and three (3) members shall be elected to serve respectively for terms of three (3), two (2) and for the balance of the year until the next Annual Meeting. Thereafter, one (1) trustee shall be elected each year at the Annual Meeting and shall serve for a term of three (3) years. Each trustee shall serve until his successor is elected or he resigns, dies or is disqualified.

Section 3 – Compensation

No trustee or officer shall receive any payment for serving as trustee or officer. Trustees and officers shall be reimbursed for funds advanced or expended for the authorized purposes of the Association.

Section 4 – Nominations

Members wishing to be elected to the Board of Trustees shall file with the Secretary thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Meeting of the members.

Section 5 – Method of Election

Election shall be by secret written ballot cast at the Annual Meeting. Each voting member shall cast one vote for each vacancy (subject to the limitations of Article I, Section 2 above).

Section 6 – Removal

Any trustee may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Association. In the event of death, resignation, or removal of a trustee, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

Section 7 – Duties of the Trustees



- (a) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association as they may deem appropriate;
- (b) cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as they may deem appropriate.
- (c) maintain the Common Properties area and such other areas which are the responsibility of the Association.
- (d) cause and pay for such contracts as may be required to administer the property.

Section 8 – Duties of Each Office

- (a) President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments.
- (b) Vice President/Secretary. The Vice-President/Secretary shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act. He shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members, serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members, keep appropriate current records of members and list of voting rights, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.
- (c) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Trustees; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association; keep proper books of account; cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year if so directed by the Board of Trustees; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures, and deliver a copy of each to the members.
- (d) The duties of any officer may be delegated to any other officer upon approval by two-thirds (2/3) of the trustee.

ARTICLE IV BOOKS & RECORD

The Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, books, records and papers of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member during reasonable business hours as arranged through the Secretary of the Association.

ARTICLE V DUTIES OF THE ASSOCIATION

Section 1 – Authority and Responsibility

41750

The Association shall maintain all of the Common Properties for the use and benefit of the members of the Association. The Common Properties shall include, but not be limited to, subdivision entry, cul-de-sac landscaping(s), signs and any landscape easements. The authority of the Association shall be limited to the matters as defined in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions. The trustees may promulgate and issue to the members, and from time to time modify or amend, if deemed appropriate, a set of rules and regulations for the use, operation and maintenance of the Common Properties and shall have the authority to impose fines for violations of the rules and regulations.

Maintenance of the local service storm drainage easement for Crossroads at Summerwood Subdivision shall be the sole responsibility of The Crossroads at Summerwood Homeowners Association of Concord Township, Inc. Such responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to: access, lay, maintain, replace or remove pavement, storm sewer pipe, manholes, ditches, swales, plantings and/or other appurtenances as required to maintain the drainage easement. Said easement is referred to in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Crossroads at Summerwood Subdivision as well as the easement for storm drainage purpose.

ARTICLE VI BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES

Section 1 – Fiscal Year

The Association records shall be kept on a calendar year basis ending on the 31st day of December of each year.

Section 2 – Budget

The Board of Trustees shall develop a budget of anticipated income and expenses for the Association and shall approve and issue copies thereof to the members by regular mail no later November 30th of each year. Said budget shall fix the amount of the annual assessment against each lot for the next year.

Section 3 – Annual Assessments

The annual assessments necessary to meet the budgeted responsibilities of the Association shall be billed to the members no later than November 30th of each year and shall be payable on or before January 1st of each year.

No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of the Common Properties or abandonment of his lot.

Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the account will be declared delinquent and a late charge of \$25.00 per month will be assessed and will be due and payable together with the delinquent assessment payment, and the Association may file a lien in an amount necessary to secure the payment of all delinquent assessments, late charges and additional charges incurred to create and record the lien. Further, the Association may bring an action at law against the owner personally obligated to pay the same or foreclose the lien against the property, and all costs, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred for any such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment.



Section 4 – Special Assessments

The Trustees are authorized to levy special assessments for extraordinary expenses not anticipated in the Annual Budget. Written notice of special ASSESSMENT shall be mailed to all Members of the Association not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date the Special Assessment is due and payable. Delinquencies in the payment of Special Assessments shall be handled in the same manner as collections of deficiencies of Annual Assessments.

Section 5 – Collections of Deficiencies

The Trustees are authorized to employ the procedures set forth in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for the collection of unpaid maintenance fees and any other assessment which have been properly authorized and approved. The Trustees are authorized to use legal actions as they may deem necessary and desirable for collection of delinquent assessments.

Section 6 – Financial Reports

The trustees shall mail a financial report for the prior year to all owners of record together with the notice of the Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS

Section 1 – Method

These By-Laws may be amended at a special meeting called for that purpose or at an Annual Meeting after notice has been given that an amendment will be considered, stating the purpose of the amendment. Such amendment shall be effective if approved by at least 60% of the members of the Association.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Thomas M. Riebe and Doreen M. Riebe, Co-Trustees of the Riebe Living Trust have subscribed their names this 12 day of 000000, 2006.

DECLARANTS:

Thomas M. Riebe, Trustee

Doreen M. Riebe, Trustee

STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY OF LAKE) ss

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for said county and state, personally appeared the above-named Thomas M. Riebe and Doreen M. Riebe, Co-Trustees of The Riebe Living Trust, who acknowledged that he did sign the foregoing instrument and that the same is his free act and deed individually and as such Trustee.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at PAINTSVILLE MY, Ohio this 12 day of OCTOBY, 2006.

Notary Public

Prepared by Declarant

Shanna Alexander
Notary Public, State of Ohjo,
My Commission Expires 3/19/2010
Recorded in Lake County

